
 
 
 

 
 
 

         9 November 2011 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Monday, 21 November 2011 
beginning at 

6:00 pm 
in 

Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillor Anne Winstanley MA (Cantab) (Chair),  
 Councillor Daniel Clarke BA (Hons) PGCE (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Mrs Cathie Fraser Councillor Keith House 
Councillor Wayne Irish MInstTA Councillor Steve Sollitt BA 

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer  

(Tel:  023 8068 8112; Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk) 
 

 
RICHARD WARD 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public.. 

 

Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 
 
2008/09 
Tackling Climate Change 



AGENDA 
 

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 2)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 August 2011.  
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.  

  
4. Seat Capacity in Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles    (Pages 3 - 4) 
 
5. Consultation on New Parliamentary Constituency Boundaries    (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 6 February 2012 at 6:00 pm 

at Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh 
Road, Eastleigh 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 



ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 9 August 2011  (6:30 pm – 6:40 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Winstanley (Chair); Councillors Mrs Fraser and House 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Clarke, Irish and 
Sollitt 
 
Apologies for absence were also received from Councillor Airey, Cabinet 
Member for Transport and Streetscene 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2011 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Members were invited to declare interests in relation to items of business 
on the agenda.  Any interests declared are recorded in the relevant minute 
below. 
 

3. HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES INCREASE 
 
At the meeting of the Licensed Transport Forum on 10 May 2011 a 
request was made by the representatives of the hackney carriage trade 
that there be a modest fare increase to reflect the rising cost of fuel. This 
was considered by the Council and a new scale of charges was proposed 
taking account of the rise in the cost of fuel, general running costs and 
insurance.  
 
As required by legislation an advert setting out these proposed increases 
was placed in the Southern Daily Echo on 16 June 2011 and one objection 
was received in response. This objection questioned the process followed 
in increasing the fares and expressed concern regarding the fragile 
economy. The Head of Legal and Democratic Services was able to 
reassure Members that the proper process had been followed and this had 
been passed on to the objector. 
 
Meter Technicians had also raised concerns that ‘odd’ amounts would be 
charged for some journeys and they would prefer to see charges rounded 
to the nearest 10 pence. To address this the trade had put forward 

Agenda Item 1

1



amendments, as set out in Appendix 5 to the report, to the original 
proposals.  
 
During the meeting it was reiterated that any fare increase agreed by the 
Committee would be the maximum that could be charged and that 
individual drivers were able to charge less if they wished.  
 
RESOLVED - 
 
(1) That the objection to the proposed tariff be noted; 
 
(2) That the fare increases as set out in Appendix 5 to the report 

be approved; and 
 
(3) That the new fares be implemented from 1 September 2011. 
 
(NOTE: One member of the public spoke on this item.) 
 
M4760 
 

2



Eastleigh Borough Council 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

21 NOVEMBER 2011 

 SEAT CAPACITY IN HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
VEHICLES 

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Administration Committee adopts the new conditions for  
seating in hackney carriages and private hire vehicles, as detailed in paragraph 6 of 
this report. 
 

Summary 
 
This report sets out the rewritten conditions for the Private Hire and Hackney Carriage 
handbook relating to the seating width requirements. 

Statutory Powers 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

Introduction 

1. This report sets out the proposed new conditions for the seating width in 
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles. 

Background 

2. At the Administration Committee meeting held on 24 January 2006 the 
Committee adopted the Private Hire & Hackney Carriage handbook. 

3. Currently the handbook outlines the requirements for “seating capacity in 
vehicles” as follows: 

14.1 Rear seat (width) 

The width of the rear seat is measured in a straight line from door panel to 
door panel on the front of the seat. This measurement must allow a space of 
at least 400mm per person. 

14.2 Seats (depth) 

The depth of the rear seat is measured in a straight line from the backrest to 
the front edge of the seat. This measurement must not be less than 457mm. 
 
14.3 Knee space 

Agenda Item 4

3



Eastleigh Borough Council 

The measurement between the rear of the front seats and the backrest of the 
rear seat must not be less than 762mm when the front seat is at its centre 
point (that is, midway on its runners). 

4. The trade has approached the Council about the problem of comfort in the 
rear seating of certain vehicles due to the seat width. The seat width of 
400mm per seat x 3 giving a total of a width of not less that 1200 mm.  

5. Most modern cars now come with 2 rear seat which are shaped and a smaller 
middle seat which when measured does not reach the required 400mm. 

6 The Licensing Department, Depot staff and Trade representatives have held 
several meetings about this matter and agreement has been reached that the 
measurement for the rear seat should read “ The width of the seat is 
measured in a straight line across the centre of the seat from edge to 
edge of the seat and shall not be less that 1200mm. In the case of a 2 
seater seat, the measurement shall not be less than 800mm”. 

           Equality & Diversity 

7         An equal opportunities assessment has not been carried out as the report 
contains no proposed significant changes to new or existing services, policies 
or strategies. 

Financial Implications 

8. There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Risk Management 

9 There are no risk implications arising from this report. The amended 
conditions would if approved improve and standardise the seating in the 
Councils licensed vehicles. 

Conclusion 

10. The Administration Committee is recommended to adopt the amended 
condition to the seating requirements for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
vehicles. 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
Civic Offices 
Leigh Road 
Eastleigh 
Hampshire 
SO50 9YN 
 
Date: 7 November 2011 
Contact Officer: Shaun EADE 
Tel No: 023 80688128 
e-mail: shaun.eade@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 

4



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Monday 21 November 2011 

CONSULTATION ON PROPOSED REVISIONS TO PARLIAMENTARY 
CONSTITUENCY BOUNDARIES  

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Committee considers the current consultation on 
changes to parliamentary constituency boundaries and submits its views 
accordingly. 
 

Summary 
 
The Committee is invited to consider and respond to the current consultation on initial 
proposals for new parliamentary constituency boundaries. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government Acts 1972, 1989 and 2000. 

 

Introduction 

1. On 13 September 2011, the independent Boundary Commission for England 
(BCE) launched a 12 week consultation on its initial proposals for new 
parliamentary constituency boundaries in England. 

2. The review of constituency boundaries is being carried out after Parliament 
decided that there should be a reduction in the number of constituencies 
across the UK, and that there should be a similar number of electors in each 
constituency (every constituency to have an electorate (as at the review date) 
that is no less than 95% and no more than 105% of the UK electoral quota of 
76,641 electors).  The number of constituencies is being reduced from 533 to 
502.  

3. Under the BCE’s initial proposals, 77 of the existing constituencies are 
unchanged.  However, changes are being proposed in this area, as detailed 
below. 

4. The BCE’s extensive consultation, which includes hosting a number of public 
hearings across England, will enable people to have their say in the design of 

Agenda Item 5

5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

the new constituency boundaries.  Detailed information has been made 
available in the Customer Service Centre since the consultation’s launch. 

5. The consultation is due to end on 5 December 2011. 

Current boundaries 

6. Following the most recent boundary changes, which were in place for the last 
(2010) parliamentary election, Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury borough wards 
were transferred (in part from Eastleigh but mainly from Romsey 
Constituency) to the Winchester Constituency, with the remainder of the 
Borough located within the Eastleigh Constituency.  There are no other wards 
from other authorities currently within the Eastleigh Constituency.  

What is proposed 

7. Full South East proposals can be accessed at: http://rr-bce-
static.s3.amazonaws.com/wp-
content/uploads/2011/09/2011_09_09_BCE_SouthEastIP_acc2.pdf?9d7bd4.  
A total of 17 constituencies have been assigned to this sub-region, a reduction 
of one from the current arrangement. 

8. At paragraphs 71 and 72 of the South East Region annex, the BCE states: 

“Our proposed Eastleigh constituency is significantly reconfigured as a result 
of our suggested changes elsewhere. It extends further to the north of 
Southampton than the existing constituency and no longer extends to the 
Solent. It includes three wards of the Borough of Test Valley that are in the 
existing Romsey and Southampton North constituency, four wards of the 
Borough of Eastleigh that are in the existing Winchester constituency, and 
seven wards that are in the existing Eastleigh constituency. This arrangement 
allows us to respect much of the district boundary between the City of 
Winchester and the boroughs of Eastleigh and Test Valley. 

 
We propose to include the remaining eight wards from the existing Eastleigh 
constituency, with five wards from the current Fareham constituency, to create 
a new Hedge End and Hamble constituency. This constituency also includes 
the Bitterne ward of the City of Southampton.” 
 

9. The proposed new parliamentary constituencies covering our area therefore 
are: 

 
Eastleigh Constituency (total electors: 78,829) 
 
Covering the following wards (number of electors): 
 
Bishopstoke East 4,414 
Bishopstoke West 4,244 
Chandler’s Ford East (coming in from Winchester constituency) 3,702 
Chandler’s Ford West (coming in from Winchester constituency)  4,667 

6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Eastleigh Central 7,715 
Eastleigh North 6,398 
Eastleigh South 6,325 
Fair Oak and Horton Heath Eastleigh 6,786 
Hiltingbury East (coming in from Winchester constituency)  4,073 
Hiltingbury West (coming in from Winchester constituency)  4,216 
West End North 4,032 
Swaythling (Southampton) 9,178 
Ampfield and Braishfield (Test Valley) 1,841 
North Baddesley (Test Valley) 5,507 
Valley Park (Test Valley) 5,731 
 
Hedge End and Hamble Constituency (total electors: 76,515) 
 
Covering the following wards (number of electors): 
 
Bitterne (Southampton) 9,873 
Botley 4,066 
Bursledon and Old Netley 5,836 
Hamble-le-Rice and Butlocks Heath 4,399 
Hedge End Grange Park 5,267 
Hedge End St John’s 6,044 
Hedge End Wildern 4,172 
Netley Abbey 4,091 
West End South 4,524 
Locks Heath (Fareham) 5,685 
Park Gate (Fareham) 6,036 
Sarisbury (Fareham) 5,516 
Titchfield Common (Fareham) 5,490 
Warsash (Fareham) 5,516 
 

10. Plans showing these proposed constituencies are attached to this report.  

11. Members may therefore wish to consider the ‘split’ of the Borough this way 
(particularly with West End North and West End South being covered by two 
different parliamentary constituencies), and the affinity to wards from other 
Council areas.   

12. It should also be noted that the current Eastleigh and Winchester 
constituencies already have electorates within 5% of the electoral quota 
referred to in paragraph 2. However, the BCE argue that the City of 
Southampton contains too many electors to be wholly contained within two 
constituencies, and the ward electorates permit few options in this area. This 
has therefore had knock-on implications elsewhere, including the Eastleigh 
area. 

13. As the bulk of both constituencies would be within this Council’s area, both 
would come under the responsibility of this Council’s appointed Returning 
Officer.  

7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

14. Details on the full consultation are available at: 
www.independent.gov.uk/boundarycommissionforengland  

Financial Implications 

15. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

Risk Assessment 

16. There are no risk implications arising from this report. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

17. Members may wish to consider whether there are any accessibility issues 
arising from what is proposed in the BCE’s consultation.  

Conclusion 

18. The Committee is invited to consider the consultation proposals and submit its 
views. 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
Date: 1 November 2011 
Contact Officer: Jon Brown 
Tel No: 023 8068 8124 
e-mail: jon.k.brown@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Two – plans of the two new consituencies 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report: 

BCE Consultation, as detailed above. 

8



Ea
st

le
ig

h 
B

C
 

25

This mapping extract has been produced from Ordnance Survey’s mapping data on behalf of the Boundary Commission for England © Crown copyright 2011. 

South East Region 
Boundary Commission for England 
Initial Proposals 
Eastleigh BC    Electorate 78,829 

Constituency
Local Authority 
Ward 

Eastleigh
North

Eastleigh Central 

Bishopstoke W
est Bishopstoke

East

Eastleigh South 

West End North 

Fair Oak and 
Horton Heath 

Swaythling

North Baddesley 

Ampfield and 
Braishfield

Valley 
Park

Hiltingbury
West Hiltingbury

East

Chandler's
Ford East 

Chandler's
Ford West 

Eastleigh
North

Eastleigh Central 

Bishopstoke W
est Bishopstoke

East

Eastleigh South 

West End North 

Fair Oak and 
Horton Heath 

Swaythling

North Baddesley 

Ampfield and 
Braishfield

Valley 
Park

Hiltingbury
West Hiltingbury

East

Chandler's
Ford East 

Chandler's
Ford West 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



Hedge End and Hamble BC 

36

This mapping extract has been produced from Ordnance Survey’s mapping data on behalf of the Boundary Commission for England © Crown copyright 2011. 

South East Region 
Boundary Commission for England 
Initial Proposals 
Hedge End and Hamble BC    Electorate 76,515 

Constituency
Local Authority 
Ward 

Botley

Hedge End
Grange Park

Hedge End
Wildern

West End
South

Bursledon
and Old Netley

Netley Abbey

Hamble-le-Rice
and Butlocks Heath

Bitterne

Sarisbury

Park
Gate

Locks Heath

Titchfield
Common

Warsash

Botley

Hedge End
Grange Park

Hedge End
Wildern

West End
South

Hedge End
St John's

Hedge End
St John's

Bursledon
and Old Netley

Netley Abbey

Hamble-le-Rice
and Butlocks Heath

Bitterne

Sarisbury

Park
Gate

Locks Heath

Titchfield
Common

Warsash

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Seat Capacity in Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles
	5 Consultation on New Parliamentary Constituency Boundaries
	Proposed Eastleigh Consitituency
	Proposed Hedge End and Hamble Parliamentary Constituency


